
 
 

2025-0038 ITB 
HVAC Controls Upgrade 

Addendum 001 September 4, 2025 

 
Attention Bidders:  The following changes and additions are made to the bid 
documents. Bidders are advised that the Revised Bid Form included with this 
Addendum must be used when submitting a bid. Any bid submitted on a previous 
version of the bid form will be considered non-responsive and will not be 
evaluated. 

 
 
Question 1 Can contractors re-use existing equipment, as available, such as existing 

conduit?  
Answer 1 The Contractor may reuse existing components where practical and 

appropriate to the new system. However, certain items, such as the CAT 5 
cables connecting the VAV/FPBs to the DDC Controller, may not be suitable 
for reuse and may require replacement.   

  
Question 2 Can you provide copies of the “As Built” control drawings and documentation 

or screenshots of all the “Points” that the new control system would be 
communication with and receiving information from? 

Answer 2 “As Built”  and screenshots have been uploaded to the Procurement Portal.  
  
Question 3 Do the fleet shop carbon monoxide sensors, the battery room hydrogen 

sensor, and the first-floor training/conference room carbon dioxide sensors all 
need to be replaced? 

Answer 3 Yes, if replacement is required to ensure compatibility and full functionality with 
the new control system. 

  
Question 4 Will any of the work be required to be done outside of normal business hours? 
Answer 4 It is anticipated that most work may be performed during normal business 

hours, provided the Contractor coordinates in advance with the WTA 
Construction Manager regarding required access to specific areas. Work 
outside of normal business hours is permissible, as WTA Facilities Technicians 
are on duty and able to provide access from 0700 to 1900, Tuesday through 
Friday. On Mondays, WTA Facilities Technicians are available only during 
normal business hours.   

  
Question 5 Will Contractor be responsible for moving furniture that may be in the way of 

their access to ceiling spaces, etc., that they need to get to? 
Answer 5 The Contractor is generally not responsible for moving furniture. Where 



furniture obstructs access to ceiling spaces or other work areas, the Contractor 
shall coordinate in advance with the Construction Project Manager.  

  
Question 6 Where is the building pressure sensor located? 
Answer 6 Location of building static pressure sensor is unknown.  Contractor shall install 

a new one as part of this project. 
  
Question 7 Which HVAC unit currently does not have a VFD installed on the exhaust fan, 

and needs one installed as specified in the ITB? And can a photo of the 
nameplate for the unit be sent out to potential bidders? 
 

Answer 7 MAH-1 currently does not have a VFD.  VFD installation and supporting duct 
static pressure sensor for MAH-1 is to be bid as Alternate 001. A revised bid 
sheet is attached which must be used when submitting a bid. Any bid 
submitted on a previous version of the bid form will be considered non-
responsive and will not be evaluated. 
 
The requested photos are attached to this Addendum.  
 
Update drawings showing alternate 001 will be provided in the forthcoming 
Addendum 002.  
 

  
Question 8 To what extent are the natural gas Radiant Heaters communicating with the 

existing control system? 
Answer 8 The existing DDC system is just providing on/off status.  No controls. 

 
  
Question 9 Are the outside lighting controls tied into the current DDC and will they need to 

be tied into the new DDC System? 

Answer 9 Yes.  

  
Question 10 Will the conduit routing from MOAB to the Fuel & Wash Building need to be 

excavated and replaced, or would the existing conduit be adequate? 
Answer 10 There are two empty 4-inch conduits that travel from the Fuel & Wash building 

room #408 to the IT control room #250 on the second floor in the main 
building. Either of these conduits will be adequate to get from the Fuel & Wash 
building to the main building. 

 
 

 

Question 11 Will the contractor have access, if needed, to a man lift on site? 
Answer 11 The contractor will have access to a man lift on site with proper scheduling and 

notification with the Construction Project Manager ahead of time. 
  
Question 12 Who will be responsible for obtaining proper permitting for this project? 

 
Answer 12 All required permitting is the contractor’s responsibility. 
  



Question 13 What are the benefits of VFD on MAH-1 and should this be an alternative bid 
item? 

Answer 13 Installing a VFD (Variable Frequency Drive) on the exhaust fan of MAH1 would 
help to balance the air pressure in the shop more effectively. This would 
require additional pressure sensors that are not currently installed.  
See Answer #7 stating this will be bid as alternate no. 001.  Use updated bid 
sheet. 
 
Update drawings showing alternate 001 will be provided in the forthcoming 
Addendum 002. 
  

Question 14 Will the engineer include the following minimum, testable requirements for the 
supervisory platform (these reflect common Niagara capabilities and market 
expectations for open access)? 
Proposed Language: 
The BAS supervisory platform shall, at minimum: 

1. Multi-vendor ecosystem: Be supported by multiple independent 
system integrators in the region; not restricted to a single 
manufacturer’s service channel. 

2. Licensing & ownership: Perpetual runtime license; Owner is licensee; 
no subscription required for continued operation. Provide license 
transfer rights to Owner if service provider changes. 

3. Engineering tools access: Deliver full administrator 
credentials and the native engineering tool to the Owner (e.g., Niagara 
Workbench or equal) so any qualified integrator can edit graphics, 
logic, databases, alarms, schedules, trends, and drivers. 

4. Unlocked deliverables: Provide unlocked station/project databases, 
graphics source files, custom logic/blocks, driver configurations, and 
backups at project closeout. 

5. Protocol interoperability: Native BACnet/IP client/server with 
BBMD/Foreign Device support; support for Modbus TCP/RTU and 
other common drivers without proprietary gateways. 

 
Answer 14 Yes, the new system is required to meet these capabilities.   

 
These requirements will be incorporated into the specifications and issued as 
part of the forthcoming Addendum 002. 

 
 
 
 

 

Question 15 Please confirm that the required supervisory software is Tridium Niagara 
4.x (Niagara Supervisor with JACE/edge controllers) as the basis of design to 
meet the open access intent. Our proposed solution is that, added to the 
Controls spec is ““Basis of Design: Tridium Niagara 4.x Framework. Equivalent 
platforms may be proposed only if they meet all ‘Open Access/Interoperability 
Minimums’ in RFI 02 and provide the same multi-vendor service ecosystem.” 

Answer 15 Confirmed, Basis of design is Tridium Niagara 4.x Framework.  
 
BOD framework will be incorporated into specifications and issued as part of 



the forthcoming Addendum 002.  
  
Question 16 Will you be accepting native spec for controls - specifically Distech controls? 
Answer 16 Substitutions will be considered when requested as laid out in “Section 2: Bid 

Conditions part 1. Request for Clarification, Deviation, or Substitution” on page 
13 of the solicitation. 

  
Question 17 Will DDC manufacturer/installer substitutions be considered during this bidding 

process? 
Answer 17 See Answer 16. 
  
Question 18 Please confirm that MacDonald-Miller Facility Solutions is added to the list 

of approved BAS bidders/integrators for this project. 
Answer 18 See Answer 16. A list of approved substitutions will be issued following the 

clarification deadline via an addendum.  
  



 

 
 

 
REVISED EXHIBIT B: BID FORM 

 
 

         Date:     
 
TO:  Whatcom Transportation Authority   
 
 
This certifies that the Undersigned has examined the location of the project site(s) and the 
conditions of work; and has carefully read and thoroughly understands the contract documents 
entitled: “HVAC Controls Upgrade 2025-038 ITB” and the method by which payment will be 
made for said work. The Undersigned hereby proposes to undertake and complete the work in 
this project in accordance with said contract documents, and agrees to accept as payment for 
said work, the Schedule of Values as set forth in the Bid  Form below.  
 
The Undersigned acknowledges that payment will be based on the actual work performed and 
material used as measured or provided for in accordance with the said contract documents, and 
that the basis for payment will be the actual work performed and measured or provided for in 
accordance with the said contract documents. 
 
 
Company Name:            
 

  

This Project is Tax Exempt   

Bid Total  $________________________ 

  

Bid Alternate No.001 Total $________________________ 

  

 

 
 

             
Bid Total Amount in Written Text 

 (must agree with figure above or Bid Total Amount in Written Text takes precedence).  
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